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Legra Academy Trust
Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 Angust 2025

The Trustees present their anmul report together with the financial statements and muditors' report of the charitable
company for the year ended 31 August 2025, The annual report sarves the purposes of both o trustees’ report, and
a directors' report and sirategic repant under company lavw.

Structure, governance and mansgement
Consiliution
The academy brust is & company limited by guaraniee and is an exempt charity. The charitable company's

memorsndurm and articles of associntion are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The
company registration number & 03666610, The charitable company operates as Legra Acaddmy Trust,

The gevernors act as the trustees for the chasiable activities of Legra Academy Trust and sre also the dinstlons
of the charitable company for the purposes of company law,

Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these sccounts are approved are inciuded in
the Referense and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' labiliy

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribuie to the assets of the company in the avent of it
being wound up whilke he/she is a member, or within one vear after hefshe ceases to be a member, such amount as
iy be tequired, nof exceeding £10 for the debts and Labilities contracted before hefshe ceases to be a2 member.

Trustees' indemniiles

The academy trust through its Articles has indemnified its Trustees to the fullest extent permissible by law, During
the period the Acadeny also purchased and maintained liability insorance for its Trustess through participation
in the Risk Profection Arrangenments.

Method of recruitmens ond appotmimen ar election of Trustees

Ciovernor recruitment is through a combination of approaches, ane being the ce-option of those with necessary
skills, from parents of children at the school to those with an interest in the school community. Mominations for
Governors will be requested by o specific date, These nominations must incleds the reasons why the nominee

wishes 1o become a Governor and the altributes they can bring 1o the Goveming Body. These nom inations will
be considered by the members of the scademy trust who will decide the successful candidate.

If a Parent Giovernor vacancy becomes available then information is circulated to all school parenisfearers.
Prospective Governors can then be nominated and seconded. If more than one applicant applies, voting papers
are sent out. Staff Governor elections will follow a similar procedure,

The Chair and Vice-Chair ane clected 1o the position anmeally.

Policies and procedures adopled for the fnduction and fratning af Trastees

The Academy Trust provides 2/l new Governors with 2 comprehensive induction package covering a
comprehensive range of issues and topics. This is to ensuse they gain a better understanding of the robe and
responsibilitizs of being a school Governor 5o ley can fulfil their role with confidence,

The Goveming Body is committed to providing fraining for Governors speeific to their roles and the
requirements of the Academy Trust The Academy Trust purchases maining from appropriate bodies.
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Legra Academy Trust
Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Crrganisasiowal strictire

The Legra Academy Trust is governed by the trustees and s constituted under a Memorandum of Association
and Articles of Assooiation.

The Trust bas 5 levels of governance:-

- Members - punrdims of the constitution

= Trust board - the DircctorsMnestees

- Local Governing Bodies - the Local Govemnors
= The Principals

- The Executive feam

The Trust Board has overall responsibility and ultimate decision making authority for all the: work of the Tnest,
including the establishment and maintensmee of the academies

The govemance of each academy is delegated to the relevant Logal Governing Body in accordance with the
Scheme of Delegation,

The Principal is responsible for the strategic planning and running of the scademy. They provids dircction to
and work with the Senbor Leadership Team o promaete the vision and values of the academy. The Senior
Leadership Team work with teaching and support staff to ensure all Aspects of the academy are effectively led,
This ties in with the academy prioritics and targets.

Arramgentents for senting pay and remuneration of key management personne!

The Bomrd of Trustees abides by the requirement of al! relevant national znd local agregments with particular
reference o

- Schoo! Teachers' Pay and Conditions Document, including doe segard o relevant guidance documents and
accompenying circulars

- Conditions of Employment for School Teachers in England & Wales

- Essex Scheme Conditions of Service

Thiose on the leadership spine play & critical role in the life of the school. They mspire confidence in those
around them und work with others to create and shure strategic vision which motivates pupils and staff. They
fake the lead in enhancing standards of teaching and learning and value enthusiasm and innovation in others,
They have the confidence and ability to make monagement and organisational decisions and ensure equity,
access and entittement to leaming.

Tiws Bozrd of Trustees confirms the membership of the schools leadership team and the salaries scales will be
determined by the pay committes, taking into due account the respective levels of respensibilities, recruitment
and reteation issues, intemal differentials throughout the school and affordability.

A successful performance appraisal review for eaching stafl, as prescribed by the appraizal regulations,
invalves a performance appraisal managemant process of:

= Asgessment against the relevant standnnds
- Performance objectives

- Classroom obscrvation

- Oither evidenee

The Roard of Trustees ensures that suitable arrangements are in place to assess the total contributions of all
support staff and use the asscasment to determine anmial pay decisions in accordance with the Essex Range.
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Legra Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 Avngust 2025 (continued)

Trade ridon faciling Hne

The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) Regulations 20017 require the Acedemy Trust to
publish information on facility thne arrangements fos trade unlon officials ol the Academy Trust The Academy
Trust confirms that there were no employess acting as trade union officials within the meaning of these regulations
during the year ended 31 August 2025,

Connected organizations, including related parly relationships

The trustees do not consider that thers are any conpected organisations or related party relationships that impact
an the aperating policies of the academny trst,

Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

The principal object of the academy trast is o provide educativon to wdvance for the public benefit education in
the United Kingdom

Objectives, strafegies and activitier
The academy trua's principle activity is 1o provide education to boys and girls betwesn: the ages of 4 and 18,

without prejudice, by establishing, mamtaining, carrying on, managing erd developing schools offering a broad
and balanced curriculum, as set down in the Company's Memorandum and Amicles of Association.

Public benefit
The academy trust provides educational services to all children in the local arca. The Trustecs confirm that they

have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charitics Act 2006 to have due regard to the public benatit
guidance provided by the Charity Commission.

In setting objectives and planning our activities the Trustess have corefully considered the Charity
Commission's general guidance on public benefil
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Legra Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Strategic Repori

Achievensents and performance

IGCSE Results 2025
Atiainment$ o Thsas
‘ERaccAPS T |
E::hwmmu 4% |
Best English 9-4 7% |!
IMaths 9-4 2%
lgﬂ_'nﬂ' als T s
Students achicving A*-B (including distinciion) T o
Students achieving A®-E o Ifirii-a
Achicvement rate iﬂms 1
==l AP R — ——

o — _F; |

Pape 3



Legra Academy Trust

Trustees' repori for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Review of activities Belfairs Academy

Avards achieved

Continuve to hold Healthy Schools Accreditatipn.

Duke of Edinburgh Bronee Award successfully completed for students in Yiear 9.
Duke of Edinburgh Sitver Award successfilly compieted for students in Year 10
Continoe to hold Eco-Schoals Accreditation

Art and Photography

Art & Photography Showease Evening - a showease of all students work in the academy with over 500 attendess,
Leigh Art Trail — Ar and Photography students exhibited their work in private venues mmd were part of a public
Voie.

Sharing best practice - SETSA mestings.

Supported students with comimission work with external links tn comnanify.

Community Art Wall = Art and Photography stodents exhibited theic work in Leigh Community Centre which
showeases local artisls

Paost 16

Unifrog workshops were delivered by University of Essex 20242025 academic yesr.

Future Ready programme did not wke place (Baker McKenrie are reshaping their program) howeves, Giles
Wilson Moating Competition replaced this with two virtual workshops delivered virtually by Baker MeKenzie o
support students.

CV warkshops delivered by DWP to Year 13 & Year 12 students

Year 12 Mock Interview Week - external professionals from the local community came in to conduet the
nterviews

Post 16 assembly delivered - Apprenticeships

Post 16 assembly defivered - Investment2020

Ex student Samanthe Dicker delivered Fine Art a1 University assembly

Reading Buddy scheme inroduced with Post 16 supponing Year 7 students identified as having a low reading
ability.

Post 16 meetings with Carcers Lead

Apprenticeship Evening

LJCAS Parent Information Evening

Year 12 Introduction to Post 16 Parent Event

A Level PE students supporting with Darlinglurst & Belfairs Sports Day

Parental Engagement

Parent forum events delivered throughout the academic year with topics such as County Lines, E-Safety,
Supporting Mental Health/Arodety, Exam Dispensation and Subject Specific support for GCSE Parents. The
academy have alse responded fo feedback from parents and introduced new topics af parents request such as
Reporting and Pathways.

Progress Evenings held for all vear groups with positive survey feedback from parents,

“Calfes and Cakie’ Events hebd for year T parents 1o suppost with any initial quénies and ransition into Sccondary
school This was alse extended to other year groups follewing feedback from parenis.

Parent and student newsletier shared each term.

Safeguarding nevsletier shored each térm,

Parents invited 1o key events throughout the yvear 1o showease work = Christmas Showease, Dance Performances,
Art and Pholography Showcase elc.

Parent Represeniative Group estzblished and enables a two-way dislogue for parents and stafl. These meetings
happen once every half term.

Events

Successful Shaping the Future event for ith year in o row, developing healthy competition between colleges and
eamn bailding skiils as well as formal inauguration of all tew students and staff o the acade
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Open Evening beld in July with over 1400 peaple through the doors,
Induction Day held for Year & students ahead of joining in Seplember,
Induction Day beld for Year [1 ahead of joining Post 146.

Bronze DofE avarded 1o students,

Silver DofE awarded to students.

Christmng Showcase held including Musizal, Dance and Art picces
Future Galeways Event to support with options from Year 8 into Year 9

Careers

Successhyl carcers carpusels for years § and 10 held in February and March, Students had s range of employer
and emplovee encounters and heard from. various training providers including ITPECO, Writtke Colloge, the RAF
and MatWest PLC.

Awnreness ussemblies 10 expand students” knowledpe of further and higher education, training opporiunitics,
spprenticeships, employment, and networking (guest speakers from University of Essex, DWF, Investment
2020, Power of Events, GeiSeiUK).

Ciatshy Benchmarks embedded within the careers programme in line with statuwtory guidance,

Continue 10 develop links with local and national businesses and Belfairs H.mﬁumy Alummni,

Mock Interviews Week for year 12 was completed - linking with top businesses in the community.

Cur:s:ﬂ: talks held for vear 10 students to give insight into careers within Finance, Hairdressing, Police, ind the

Srud;enls with an interest in Land, Sea, and Air careers from year 10-13 snken to a careers fair at South Essex
College specifically for these career pathways.

Post=16 university applicants supported through UCAS, personal statements and student finnnee workshops with
guests from University of Essex,

UICAS super fudr trip for Post-16 students (6 ensure encounters with o range of higher education providers.
Health and Social care caneers conference trip al Anglia Ruskin University for GCSE and post-16 Health and
Social Care students,

Staff

A list of wellbeing aetivities and events circulated for staff cach term.

Continuation of mombly Shining Star for staff

Continuation of weekly staff exercise challenge

Contivuation of Staff Mewsletter each term

Continuation of secret baddy scheme

Whale staff wellbeing event held at the end of the academic year, picale and fee cream.
Christmaz wellbeing and activity events

Running/dog walking club

Twilight/'CPD programme focused for both support and teaching stafT. Carouse] workshops available allowing
staff to ensure there we options for CPD.

S1aff wellbeing audit shows stafT feel supporied

Transition & Summer School
Successful fransition programme for year 7 with 144 stedenits participating across the two weeks
Tailared activities relating 10 the theme of Belonging, sctivities such as;
Diehating and poetry *Is it important 1o At m?"
Druma ice breaking games ensuring everyane gets an equn] opportunity (o ake pan.
At activity based on their Journeys to school which helps with understanding of local area
Musie memorabilia design based on their favourite music arist, focused on fan community to
emphasise the belonging theme,
¥ Two doys of intrepid ventures external activities focused on team bailding.
Fecdback from students and parents was very strong, noting how worm and nurturing siaff were and what s
great experience it was for thedr child,
Stal¥ commented on the smooth running of the summer schoo! programme and how it was lovely 1o be able ta
turn up and have structere in place.
Chitdren and parents commented on how valuable this had been for their children befores the September start.

vYYYyY
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Eguality and Diversity

Fauenlity chib ran every week for all yvear groups hased on kssues they wish to discuss and current challenges ficed.
Eguality and Diversity audit completed for students and fed back 1o Safepuarding Team.

Training delivered fo all stafl on LGBETO) in the cumiculum including unconscious bias.

Cur Uniform Policy continues 1o reflect children's autonomy over pender identity.

Souihend Pride - staff and students made banners and attended Southend Pride.
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Legra Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

EnrichmientRewards

An Enrichment programme offering o vanety of after-school and lunchtime activities

throughous the academic year. A weeskly Enrichment Bulletin is delivered during tutor time,

which advertize these clubs, plus further opportunities both in and out of the academy.

Excellent Student Award — our Bronge, Silver and Gold awards challenpe our students to achieve
exoellence, not only in attendance and behaviour, but through life skills and research into future coreers
and emplovability,

A college system where student achievement is recognised through the awarding of value points
electronically. These are automatically sent home via Bromoom,

Students rewards, with vouchers 1o use af local businesses, including Dash!, Liguid Flair, Bobha Blvd
and Southend United FC.

Intercollege competitions presend opportunities for fendly competition in different subjoct areas. A
wizekly updnte on the competition ia ncluded in the Enrichment Bulletin.

The annual showease, a Performing Arts spectacular. This year's production fs Matilda

Various sporting sucéesses in Athleties, Tennis, Rughy and Nethall

A Fun Friday Challenge, where students aim to conguer the challenge to win a canteen fast pass.
Just Dance — hald on the last Fridoy of esch term, the Just Dance event is a popular enrichment
opportunity attended by 200+ pupils.

Stucernt shining star— staff nominate the students for going above and beyond in or out of the
classroom. All students nominated receive a posicard home and value points also.

Student nmbassador programme — each tutor group has nominated a stsdent wha will act as their
ambassador, providing links between students, staff and the local community. All ambassadors are
trained in Leadership and Communication skills 1o develop projects within the academy.

A peer mentoring programme ran by Mr Lewis, whereby year 11 and P16 students help to support
younger students in the academy.

End of term celebration assemblics showeasing student successes in cach subject,

Gold tie pssembly celebration for our year 11 students,

Students have enjoyed trips to Tate Modern, Tale Britain, Royal Academy, and Neaseden Temple,
intemational Trips o Mew York (Muths), Disneyland Paris {Science) and Berlin (Humanities).
Alternate unnuoal ski trips 1o Burope and the USA

Iack Petchey - *Speak Out” Challenge completed with students develaping their skills in public
speaking, Belfairs students reached the regional final,

Tack Petchey - funding received from student winners.

Charity week raising £13500 for our college charities.
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Legra Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 Augost 2025 (continued)

Review of Darlinghurst Academy
OFSTED and Qutcomes

Ungraded inspection on Februry 28t and 29th 2025,

There were no aseas of improvement and due to the strong evidence, across all areas, the repont stated:
‘improved significantly wcross all areas since the previows inspection. The schoal's next inspection will be a
*graded inspection . The report embodied our culiure and commitment to our children and education.

Preas asticles celebrated the Ofsted result and exceptional outcomes placing SATs results as 3rd in the borough
for enmbined (82%)

The inspection found that the ncademy's work had improved significantly across all areas since the previous
inspection (which rated the scademy a5 *Good") and the next inspection st to be a graded inspection to further
cehebrate the school's exceptional impact.

The Ofsted report comes as Year six results showed thot children leave shove local and national expectation and
placed Dwarlinghurst Academy in the twop thres schools within the ¢ity of Southend for their combined result of 32
per cenk

Thee Oifsted Paret View surviy was exceptionally positive, and numerous parents reached out to shene their
pratitade, ermphasizing how the scademy has mode & significant difference 1o their children's lives.

Awards

Platinum award for PE

The Scheol Games Mark is a government-led mward scheme. It celebrates s¢hools’ commilment to develaping
competitive sport within their school and community. It allows schools to assess their PE provision and creafe
an aetion plan for improvement.

We have been recognised at the highest level for cur PE provision - @ celebration of five conseeutive years of
continwows quality provision and evidence against the * school games” criteria,

Orar pathway to Platinum started in 2018 with a five-year vision,

This wos paused dusing the pandemic (although our team continued to provide motivational sports challanges)
Now five validared years later ..., We have reached our ambition,

A plitinum award {8 available for schools that achieve pold consistently.

The platinum award i valid for two years

K51 Active Essex Sports Award = For autstanding provision in delivering physical activity, PE and school sport
within K51,

Green Flag with Distinction (4 consecutive years)

The Eco Flag has been awarded to the scademy since 2020,

With our continbous commitment a3 an Eco-school we wers awarded the level of Distinction last year. This has
been achiwved again this year for the fourth year fn a row. The level of distinction is awerded for highlighting
your Boo-work beyond the Eco Commistes, warking on projects linked to making the community more eco-
friendly and commitment &5 part of the whole schoal ethos, with all staff and children being involved.

Forest Mark (Silver)

The scademy has engaged in the Southend Forest project and will continue for the forth coming vean Last year
100 saplings were planted in the academy grounds.

DAz o case stedy school.

Asthma fricodly school (gold)

Dastinghiiret has gained the status for our care of students with asthma, The asthma friendly schools programme
sets out clear, effiective partnership arrangements between health, educations and local suthorities for managing
young people with isthma at primary schools, This means we advocate inclusion, are clear on our procedures and
have designated Asthma feads As an scademy we recognise that asthma is a sérious but controllable condition and
aim fo support thess children in participating fully in scademy life. We have o *whols school® appreach to regular
iraining. =0 staff are confident in carrying out their duty of care,
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Initiatives

Engagement in Attachment and trauma training {whobe school)

DA 15 mone gy sitachment and Trauma aware schood (Flourish)

World of stories - work with National Literacy Trust and Juniper Libraires

DA invited to Downing Streetas | of 3 schools o atend a ceremony and celebration of the work.

Relational Practice: DA second year of engagemen in the beadership programme with: positive recognition of
our work and approach

DA iz now a Pariner school (WTAC) and warks with members of the WTAC team.,

Anglian Water project : focused on sewage. survey, assemblies, Y4 workshop

DA is 5 case study school,

Enrichment and engagement

Ari trails and competitlons: Engagement in festivals and competitions has remained high with successiul
exhibits and winning eniries for the academy and individual art.  Our anmual ot exhibition ineluded work from
DA, BA, Admiral Court and local arfists,

Musle and dance: A number of Festive productions were held in the academy ond community. Engagement in
the music sessions with the Music Hub and wider music festivals, e infant and Junior Music festival and
Young Voices, A siccessful performance of the Dance festival by our Cheer Squad, including key features at
sports day and open davs.

Caedmon Company: continued external funding as enabled DA to work with the Caedmon company for the
24-25 year with children engaging in theatre projects supporting the self-confidence and creativity. 36
disadvantoged childten partieiputed i the academic year. Overal| the children have pained from this expertience,
improving thisir cultural capital.

Qutward bounds: As part of our developments within the connected curriculum (Geography/PE/skills) the
curriculum effir expanced opportunity for engagement in outdoor pursuits across year 4, 3 and 6. This mcleded
wisitg to external providers; Thriftwood, Nuclear races and PGL (residential),

Trips and visits: Corricolum ‘hooks” and ‘end points’ have fovelved trips or visiors, They have included the
following: Casdmos — Lion King, Yr 5 WHSB *Box of Delights’, ¥r & Braintres musewn & Tower of London ,
¥r 5 Imperial war museum, Yr 4 MNamral history museumn, Yr 3 Colchester 200, Y 2 Heritage centre, Yr 2 Call
of the wild, ¥r 6 PGL, Yr 5 Nuclear races and Y'r 4 Thriftwood.

Visits and workshops with local secondary schools have focused on curticulum and transition.

Visits to places of worship: Visitors Fom Leigh Road Baptist Chuech linked with Christian festivals at Baster
and Christmas time. Visits to Leigh Road Baptist church and St Michael™s and All Angels Church mapped in
curricubum.

Visits and workshops with local sccondary schools have focused on curricslum and transition. Belfiirs academy,
The Deanes Schonl, Chase High School, Westcliff High School for Boys and Girls, 51 Themas More, Southend
High Schoal for Boys & Southchureh High,

Links to community and faiths: Hanli from Leigh Road Baptist Clurch Haked with Christian festivals at Easter
and Christmas time. Leigh Baptist Church Motivity, K51 & K52 Admisal Coun & Silversen Home carol concert,
Cliffs Pavilion 12 days of Chrisimas.

Easter and Summer sehool: A suecessfisl provision to children who are disadvantaped during scheol breaks.
Children aceessed 2 range of activities and attendance led o positive engagement and returms to the new terms.
36 children anended Easter school, including 15 children in Y6 who were invited to revision hub, Teacher
agsegement of the childeen shows that 9710 children improved their standardised scores, and 510 teacher
assessment shows that they have converted ta working at the expested standard. OF the 5 children that have not
comverted, 4% increased theis standardised score and 3/5 have SEN with 1/5 EAL. 41 children atended the
sumimer provision across the week,

School led tatoring = 32 childeen) were targeted with positive progress and outcomes. Their average soores for
arithmetic increased from 26 1 33 out of 40,

Active Citizens : Children wene dedicated to their groups and action plans. This incloded;

Reading Ambassadors, Digital Leaders, Eco Commitiee, Sports Commities, Play Squad, Peer Mentors, Prefects,
Hend Prefects, Junior Governars,  Each of these groups were given lanyards to help identify their roles and
raise fhe profile of our active citizen groups.
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Eeo Committee

The Eco Comminee worked hard 1o achieve the Green Fiag Award with distinction for the fourth vear focusing
on the three themes of water, litter and transport. They wrote to @ local councillor whout car idling, raised money
fior Ofom end organised a litter pick at Challowell beach,

The Play Squad enthusiastically lead games an the playground this year

Chur Junior Governors collected miniature toiletries for Southend Hospital and helped develop a healthy snack
policy for our school

Reading Ambassadors enjoyed helpmg in our new libeary and Keepang it udy.

Always busy with duties anound the school such as supporting younges children, helping &t communily events,
selling poppies and welcoming visitors.

Our wonderiul Digital Leaders made sure all of our compasting equipment works well,

They belped others on the plaveround when they are fesling sad.

Wrote tor and met with owr MP about equality in sport as well as representing our school at various competitions,

Community events and joint profects / network groups and aetions:

Work with LA = SALT specialists: 14 children are working with the Speech and Language therapy team, 3
children in Year | are warking on Phonological awareness end 4 in Year 2 and 4 children in Year 3 and | in Year
4 are following the Active Listening for Active Leaming Programme. (all hove an LEA present who will also be
akide to train other members of s1afT 1o follow the programme at o later date)

Courses: WP Literacy, NPQLBC in Léarning Behaviowr Culture & Senco Level 3,

Wark with St Vincent to support lecal community: the hungry eupboard, designed by a former papil as been
used across the academic year providing foed to 5t Vincents chanty. Other work includes Harvest Donations.
Charities and fundraising: Hello Yellow - Young Minds & Just One Tree £366,

BEC Children in Need £118, Christmas Jumper Day - Save the Children £169, Litile Havens Christmas
denations £659, Red Noss Day - Comic Reliel £590, McMillan Cancer Support £83

Preloved uniform sales - Total monies raised in 2024/25 £750

Waddle on Sea — continued support and fondraising for Linle Haven's with DA's penguin located in Leigh. Eco
— Flipper shased the important message of *Climate chanpe’, Our penguin will be returning and will join our
hare, giraffe and clephant

The FTA has a néw team. Events included this year: Mother"s Day copeakes, Father's Day gingerbread men &
Lego men, Wonka bar zale, Summer Fele, Christmas Fair & Santas Grolto, Valentmes Day decoralion making,
Poctry competition, Pond design competitian, Iee pop sale, PGL &l home lee cream treat, Yt disco tuck shop,
Reception open evening, Autumn celebration event.

Funds will be used to revamp ihe pond 1o suppor natural green spaces and ODL opportunities and Seience,
Children have been involved in the pond design and works are enderway. Funds raised so far £2,429,

Tea and Talks : Welcoms to Early Years, Introduetion to Lower Key Stage 2, Reception phonics, Reception
maths, Yol Introduction to SATS, Internel Safery, Phonics Mursery, Yr 4 Mubtiplication check, Phonies sereening
check, Moving up from Mursery to Reception, Yr 6 PGL and FGL 2026 information evening.

Sporting Achievements and swimming:

Y6

T4 % Matonal Curriculum Standard
10 % Working towards

¥3

63 % NCS

11% Working fowards

il.;?i!_&_llmm

54% of SEN children have reprosented the acedemy in sport
48% of PP

K52

Ti% of 3EN children hive represented the academy in sport
65% of PP
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Tiddler fests and Tiny Tiddler special events:

Tiny Tiddler seasions run from 9 — [1am each Thursdoy. Average 25 families (2024-2025) 6 children have
staried nursery and 1 child started reception cohort 2025 whilst the remain with seme of the children due 1o start
this acadomic year and the following year.

Special events and themes included World smile day & National brush day, National pyjumna day NSPE
Machlitlan coffee morming and festival of light.

Tiddler fests took place for toddlers and new reception intake with over 30 families atending the eveat,

Events, Nutional weeks and deeper days woven within the RSHE currieulum and other subject links:
Shaping the Future

Open Evening

Frincipal Tours

Christmas performances

Young Yoiccs

Year 6 leavers assembly

Year 6 science fayre

Year 6 business enterprise
Mental Health Awsarensss Week
Pride Month

Sports Day

Anti-racism day - wear red

World Book Day

Reception Information Evening
Art Exhibition

Library Launch

Hello Yellow Day — Anti Bullying
Mational TA Day

My Futre My Southend
Remembrance Day

Show racism the red card

Positive noticing day / world Kindoess day
International family day

Contextoal Change and Growth

Girowth of the Barly Years — increase in nursery numbers and nevw room opened,

Mursery fulicr seoner and with numbers for 2024-23 exceeding past figures at this point,

Gireatest number of parents atiending prospective tours for Reception with & waiting list. This year®s imtake
September 2025 has & waiting list of 8.

6.8% of children in Beception have an EHCP, there are currently no other children on SEN support but wo are
already being observed for potential additions to the register. All children in Roception with EHCPs have a
disgmnsis of sutism and are non-verbal. Dolphin Bay, our own internal altermative provision for children with high
levels of SEM, currently has six children, from years 1 to 6, accessing this provision évery morming, with further
chiliren joining in the afternoon. All six have a diagnosis of autism and three wre completely non-varbal, All have
an EHCP. In addition, alternative provision is provided for eight further children in years 5 and 6, all of wham
have hagh levels of heed.

Twilights have focused on supporting attachment and trauma and the emotional necds of all,

Figures and Contextual Factors

End af year 506 children on roll. With nursery total ninnber on roll o 366

Drespite low birth years and a reduction in the overall pan, there has been substantial growth to the academy,
including & growing waiting list.

The academy continies to see a shift in mobility with relocation being the main reason for beavers and joiners.
This incledes the recent growth in numbers with families meving to the Southend area,

PP 144 pupils were in receipt of PPG £217 450, FSM 22.6% (Mat: 25.7%)

SEN support s 8% (excluding Nursery) which is below the national primary average (14.8%). However, a
mumber of those on schoel support hive recently converted tn EHCPs. The percentage of EHCP is 4.3%
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{Mational 3.5%) This i an increase of 12 when compared to the beginning of the prévious scademic year, not
tnking into account the year 63 (hat left in July (619 children had EHCPS). Funther applications have been made
and if all were to convert aur average EHCPs would be 5.4%. There 5 a greater number of children with
diggmosed AutismyADHD with 25/63 (39.7%) with a further 16 children already on the register awaiting
diagnosis, This continues 1o grow year on yeas

There has been a slight decline in the number of children wath EAL or with little’ na English, 82 chaldren are
classified as EAL (12.3%0) There are curcently no identified EAL children in Mursery

Developments

Full mam toilet refurbishmem
Canopies and benches for quiet reading areas
Windows and door 10 courtyard
SEN parden

EYFS ched

MNew seats to el dining tables
LED lighting fo front of academy
LED lighting to EYFS SEN arcas
Equipment for SEN arcas
Nursery soff play extension

Oroteomes 20025
EYFS : 73% GLD
Phonics: 7%

MTC: 1%

SATS: 6R% combined

SATS Targets and Ouicome:

Frovidanal Acodemy Targaets 3024 - 35

2024 Daza was the highest outcomes an the peademy o date.

Sustained outcomes for end K52 despite the lowest starting point and cobort needs (a third SEN)

*Pasetive combimed for 2022 (69%), 2023(58%) and 2025 (68%) with Nationa (593, 60%%).

*Data matehes EXS+ reading resules for 2023 {73%) and above prior National (74%6),

*Drata matches GDS reading results for 2024 (35%). Our highest datz 2nd above prior National {29%).

*Positive writing resalts (EXS+) for 2022 (80%), 2023 (82%) and 2025 (83%) with National (63%, T1%).
*Data matches GIS writing results for 2023 {15%) and above National {13%). 3% difference to 20024,

*Az peedicted, dara EXS+ maths resulis sit befow 2022 (B6%) and 2023 {83%), We remain above prior National,
* Data is in line for GDS maths resalts 2023 (22%) and 2025 (23%).

DA Attainment Summary = 4-year trend

Page 14




1z EVF5 Historicol and Cwrant GL0 Cepicome
Schosl 2033 | Haional | Scheal2024 | Nalional 2025 Sehool 2025

teamay
School 2033 | Motionol | Schoal 3024 | Holienal 3025 | Sehosl 2025

|

-

Tablg
Haliwna!
iy
475 ETH 75 7%, IR 73135
Haflonal
2023
Elia

Lt B £ TRE B2 -1

Table & Yeor £ MuScicalion Totdies Chegk
Sohool | Hath Schal Mofional | Sshool2024 |  Molional | Zehosl 2078
el 1z 1023 2034 2025
3% e 2% 2% ThE e |
2 20 FI 0.6 i) ii:led 21125 |
Tabio 7; 53 Malodc god Curpml Aflgicmen] Eg+

Hofional | School | HNallonal | School | Hokonal School | Nollenal| School
202 Lol 2033 033 2034 2034 e e
5% TR 136 15% Tafy T3 755 | 798 |
o Wriling | %R 0% I sy iI% B ki £3% |
& 2% % EX% Er ] % P

125 7% 755 4% 75 BER 135 65%
i) [Tl Bl B3N -1k e | B% § Q2%
e 435 don [ _65m 3 415 HR 435 ok |

Schaal Metianal Sehoal Hatlanal Seheat Motians] 2028 | Sohool 2025
2022 033 2023 2024 | g0z
245 i -5, T 1. 5 HE
9% 13% 155 7% 5%, 13% 14%
o Maths | I5% 2% e 4% i) 24% | 3%
4% I 0% X% L] 20% IR
A % il B% T I ST

Pape 15




Legra Academy Trust
Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Financial kev performance indicators
The final KP['s for the period were as fiollows:

Using Imegrated Curriculum Financial Planning (ICFP) analysis, the following metrics were achieved:
2024

2025
Pupil numbiers {censug) 2,160 21
% Total Revenue Inommne:
(Crrant income 05 3% 93.5%
Sell~penerated income 4.7% 6.5%
Teaching staff 51.2% 51%
Support staff 22% 19.7%
Mon-staft Spend 19.1% 20.7%
In=year surplus 3E% £.6%
Going comcern

After making spproprinte enquiries, the Board of Trustees bas a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust
Tras adequate resources to continue n operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues
1o adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Financial Statements. Further details regarding the adoption of
the poing comcern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial review

The Trustee Board has been focussed on creating a sustainable financial footing for the Toest and its neademies,
We note significant advancentent in this cegard with the Trust achieving an increase in the cumulsive surpius
position by August 2025, which illustrates our five-vear planning and forecasting is now paying dividends. This
has been achieved throngh appropriate efficiencies, additional sudents and a relentiess focus on ensuring value
for mongy in all operations. Chur forccasting and financial planning continues in this regard which supports the
plans to spend reserves fo cnhance the provision: experience and infrastructure.
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Legra Academy Trust
Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Reserves policy

The Trustees regularly monitor the reserves to ensure that sufficient funds are mointained to meet anticipated
fulure nesds whilst avoiding long term sccumulation of excessive sumd.

The Trustees aim 1o maintain 2 prudent level of reserves in line with their policy to spend funding received on
the pupils in the Academy at that time, except where a specific project required funding to be buill up over
several vears

Thi current reserves at 31 August 2025 was £3,746,630 [excluding the fixed asset and pension reserves] {31
Augun 2024; £3,158,144) which 15 23 8% of revenue (31 August 2024: 21%).

Legra Academy Trust has decided that the rescrves level should be & mintmum of 10% wup 1o 8 maximum of
1595 and 5% discretionary for the CEQ fo resolve any immediate issues. As per the policy, action is being taken
in preordance with the reserves spend strateqy in 202526,

OF the £3,746,630 rescrves stated above, £3,274,73%9 were resiricied general funds {31 August 2024,
£2.840,441) and £471,891 were unrestricted peneral funds (31 Auguss 2024: £317,703),

The cash flow of the trust has been healihy all year, ending with a balance of £4, 223 489 (31 August 2024:
£3.463 8%4), The Trustees monitor cazh fow 1o ensure sufficient coverage of short term cash flow variances.

Die 1o the accounting rabes for the Local Government Pension Scheme under FRS 102, the Academy had been
recopnising a pension fund deficit. The browght forwand asset amounted to £560,000. The actuarial pension fund
valuation for 31 August 2025 resulied in an asset of £2,721,000 but it has been decided that mstead of
recognising an asset, the fund will be carried forward with a £nil balance. The valustion does not mean that an
immediate asset or [iabality for this amount crystallises. A deficit generally results in a cash flow eifect in the
form of increased employer contributions over a number of years and vice versy. The Trust is currently making
paymenls as agreed with scheme administrators. The recognition of this fund has no direct impact en the free
reserves of the Academy,

[Tnvestment policy

The charitable company’s cumrent policy is 10 invest surplus funds in short-term cash deposits. There are no
investments held bevond cash deposits retained wilh the majer UK ¢learing banks. Speculative fnvestments are
ot permitted.

Principal ritks and wncerfointies

A risk register 15 maintained for the Tnest end s reviewed 81 each meeting by the Audit Committee and Trust
Board. The risk register identifies the key risks which are priotitised using a consistent scoring system, which
evthuates the likelibood of those risks occurring, their potential impact on the Trust and the actions being taken 1o
redute and mitigate the risks, Outlined below is & deseription of theee principal operational risks and uncertainties
relating o the Trust.

c Security Ris)
The potential for an [T failure specifically due to cyberattacks is an important risk for the Trust with such attacks,
hecoming more common generally. To mitigate the risk in this regard, there ase frequent software upgrades, IT
investment is based on long term financisl budget plunning, firewalls and antivirus system in place and the Trust's
IT manager kas robust and tested controls in place.

Finzncial Rigk

The key financial risks are assessed as:
#  Revenoe risk arising from Muetuations in Government Funding determined at government level;
#  Cosiincreases arising from costs outside our direct control - .g. pay, pensions and NI
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We aim o mitigate these risks by
*  Reforecasting our budger on a conservative basis and reacting to any announced changes by cost culting
af mix changes in teaching subjects and teaching load where possitble;
= Holding opproprinte reserve levels and revising budgets as and when changes 1o contribution reles are
communicated,

Esiate Health and Safety
The Trust pays close attention to Health and Safety including the safety of its estite and this forms o key part

of monitorng. The Trust has systems in place (o monitor the safety systems in place deross its Schools and
his a designated Health and Safety Officer and Governor.

Fundraising
The scademy trust does not use any extenal fundraisers.

The Trustees recognise the importance of getting fundraising right and adopt the following six principles 1o
support them in discharging their responsibilities;

1. Effective planning

We have effective systems in place o decide on an overall approsch fo income peneration and the required
fundraising stratogy.

2. Bupervigion of fundraigers

We have effective systems in place to keep control of fundmising when delegating o employees, working with
volunieers or commercial partrers or working through a trading company,

3, Muanepement of chariiies assets and resourees

We have effective systems in place 1o identify risks we may face durdrig Rmdraising and to plan for thei
management, identily sesgurces required for fundraizing, justify costs and protect money raksed.

4. Comply with all relevant legal aws

We have effective sysiems in place so that we comply with omy legal nules applicable o fundraising.
5, Comply with code of lindralsing practice

We have effective systems in place so that we comply with eny standards spplicable to our fundraising
6. Be open and acoountable

We have effective systems in place including complying with the sccounting framework, being open gboul
complaints and clearly wording appesls.

Flans for future periods

The priorities going forward are to mitigate the risk of faltering birth rate in the Southend asca which will impact
Daclinghuns and then Belfiics long term. We have achieved the target for the frust to increase the levels of reserve
hald by the Trast, The Trust have been suceessiul in securing fanding for o nurfure centre af both acodemies within
the Trust, This will increase funding from April 2024 from students signposted to us from the Local Authority,
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Legra Academy Trust

Trustees' report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continned)

Policies towards employees and doabled persons

As part of our gafer recruitment policy, disability information is collected. We hold regular retum to work meetings
where staff can share any changes in health conditions. Risk assessments are completed by SLT to prosctively
end positively support any workplace adaptions or needs.

Emplovee Consultating

Any changes are communicaied to staff theough the 3 weekly all staff bnefings and followed up with an email
outlining the actions. Subjects Leads attend scparate weckly mesting to discuss Tesching and Learning and
Academy changes.

All staff emails are sent out regulerdy with information that needs to be communicated.
Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

" STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING REPORT =z
| FORNCLUSION IN TRUSTEES REPORT i
" UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energyuse  Current  Comparison
data for the period 1 September 2024 to 31 Reporiing  Reporting
Algust 2025 Year 2024[25 Year 202324
Enengy consumptlion used 1o caiculate
emissions gam) 1195316 1028552
Energy consumplion braak down (KA}
__ ioptional:
__ Tgas _ 319758 144983
_ velechicly __872s60  BT94AI
_ rtangpen fun 2,097 4,138
Scope 1 emissions in melric tonnas CO2e =y
| Gas consumption SBSO 26,52
Cvned ranspon - mink-buses a.8¥ 1.02
~ Total Scope 1 Soaa | 2754
Scope 2 emizsions in meldctonnes CO2e I i
__ Purchased sleciicity 154.44 182,04
_ Scope X emissions in metricionnes CO2e
| _Business bravel in employes ownedvehicles 0.05 0.0z
Business ravel in hired delvery vehicies .00 0.00
Tolal gross emissions In melricionnes COZe 21387 20965
Inensity ratio Tannes CO2a pat pupll 010 6.0

We hove followed the 2019 HM Government Environinenital Reponting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol = Corporate Standard and have weed the 2025 UK Government"s Convetsion Factors for

Company Reporting,

Intensity measurement
The chosen inlenaity measurement rafio is total gross emissions in metria toanes CO2e per pupil, the
recommended ratio far the sector,

The Trost has inersesed use of video conferencing tochnology for staff and governance meetings to reduce the
need for trivel between sites. The Trust has installed additional LED lighting solations and uses solar panel
technology.
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Legra Academy Trust

Trustees’ report for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

Auditor
Insofar as e Truslees ate aware:

= there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company"s weditor is unaware; and

*  the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken w make themselves aware of any relevant audit
informetion and to establish that the auditor is aware of that mformation.

The trusiees’ report, incorporating a Strategic Report, was appraved by order of the members of the board of
Trustees on 2 December 2025 and sigped on its behalf by:

W &Wﬂ,_,

M5 B Williams
Trustes

MrsK Berlock =
Chair of Trustees
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Legra Academy Trust
Governance statement

Scope of responsibility

As irustees, wie acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Legre Academy Trust bas an
cifiective and appropriate system of control, Tinancizl and oterwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than climinate the risk of failure to achieve Business ohjectives, and ean provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against materinl misstalement or Joss.

As Trustess, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance {n DIE's Governance Guide.

The board of Trusiees has delegated the day-io-day responsibility 1o Ms B Williams, CEOMPrincipal of Belfiirs,
s Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial contrals conform with the requirements of both propriety and good
financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to i in the funding
ggreement between Legra Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They ane also responsible for
reporting 1o the boand of Trustees any material weaknesses of brezkdowns in imternal control.

Governance

The information on governange included here supplements that described n the Trustees' report and in the
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The board of Truslees has formally met § limes dusing the vear,
Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trostees wis as Tollows:

Meetings Outafa
Trustee attepded possible

Mra K Herlock Chair of Trustees

Mz B Williams, CEQ/Principal of Belfairs

Dr P Hayman, Chair of Audit Committee (appointed 34 February 2025)
Ms F Evans

Mr A Tregoning

Ms § Jones (resigned 15 October 2024)

Mrs K Herlock

Mrs L Corben {appotmed 24 Februury 2025)

Mr I Nice (appotnted 25 June 2025)

Lo I I — S T~ T T T |
L LA s A LR L LA LA

All sppoiniments and terminations are as disclosed on page 1 {reference and administrative details)

Leprn Academy Trust has clear demarcation of roles and responsibilities. The main Trust Board considers and
implemenis strategic development, financial oversight and azsesses risk across the Trust. Local Governing Bodies
in each of the academiss have o specific, delegrted responsibility to montior the quality of teaching and leamning
and curriculum planning and development. Belfairs Local Governing Body is chaired by a primary school
headiezcher. Governors visit frequently, meet staff and students =nd establish tack and finish groups on specific
topics to drive forward standards, Darlinghurst Govemning Body continues to focus on working in partnership with
senior leaders on cwrriculum development, safeguarding and welfare and teaching and bearning,

The CEC and CFO prepores a comprefiensive report for cach meeting of the Trust mermbers with o detailed review
of finances, scademic performance of each scademy and evidence and commentary regarding the Trust’s corposate
priocivies,
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Legra Academy Trust

Governance statement {continued)

Board and Local Governing Body meetings

The Trust Board and Local Governing Bodies have continuved 1o meet as planned throughout the yvear, ensuring
elarily and focus on the corporate objectives.-Governors continue o monitor all ancas of the improvement plans
and meetings inclsde presentations from Subject Leaders in each Academy to ensure CPI3 of staff and that
Governors ave a full awareness of {he curriculum in each school,

We hold an up to date register of business interests. The information is beld by the Clerk and CEQ who ane aware
of any conflicts of interest. Board Mectings take place 4 times per year, with an additional 3 méetings in the year
for the Audit Commitiee.,

The interna] auditor attends each avudit committee meeting throughowt the year where they preseot an update on
the most recent intemal audits

Aundit commities

The Trustees have resolved to establish an Audit Committee in accordance with the Academies Financial
Handbook. The purpass of the Aodit Committes is to advise the Board of Trostees with an apinion on:

« Matters relating to the Trust's audit arrangements
* Systems of infernal control.

« Risk management arranpements

= The Framework of Govermnance

The committes i requited 1o fulfil its responsibilitics set out within the tarms of the appropriste Financinl Manual,
policies and procedures, and in complionce with the requirements of the Funding Agreement between the Trust
and the EFSA,

Artendance of the meetings is as follows:

Meetings Out of a
Truslee attended possible
Dy P Hayman, Chair of Audit Commiitee F 2
Mis B Williams ((Observer) 3 3
Mrs K Herlock, Chair of Trustees (Observer) 2 3
Mr A Tregoning 2 3
Mr J Nice 1 1
Ms F Evans 2 2
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Legra Academy Trust
Governance statement (continued)

Review of valee for moncy

As accounting officer, the member has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good valee in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
snd wider societal owteomes a5 well as estates safety ond management, achieved in return for the taxpayer
resontrees received. The Accounting Officer considers how the Inest's use of its resources has provided good value
for money during each academic year, ind reports to the boasd of irustess where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking dats where appropriate,

The Trust continuwes (o secure value for moaey with iz procurement of leases, meintenance contencts and service
leve] agreements across all academfes, All Academies have detafled three year budgets, ineluding ICT refresh and
& buildings maintenance programme. The Trust continues to effectively use assets to generate additional income
from the hire of premises to business and sports associations within the lecal community. The Truslees mainsain
a stronpg oversight of the long term finencial plan and effectivenéss of individual Academy budget plans which
are discussed and challenged at all Trustee mectings.

The purpase of the system of internal control

The system of intemal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level ratber than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims wnd objectives; it can therefore only provide reasenable and not shaolute assumnce
of effectiveness. The system of internal eontrol is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of scademy trest policies, aims and objectives, o evaluate the likelinood of those
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage themn efficicntly, effectively and
cconomically. The system of intemal control has been in place in Legra Academy Trust for the year ended 31
Augist 2025 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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Legra Academy Trust

Governance statement (continued)

Capacity to handle risk

The board of Trustees has reviewsd the key risks 1o which the academy trust is exposed, together with the
operating, financial and complisnee controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
Trugtees is of the view that there is a lormal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy
trust's significant risks that has been in ploce for the year ended 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements, This process is regularly reviewed by the board of Trustess,

The risk and control framework

The academy’s system of intemal financial control is based on a framework of reguler management information
and administrative procedures lnctuding the ssgoegation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability,
In particular, it includes:

* Comprehensive budpeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees

* Regular reviews of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase
plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

= Betting targets to measure financial and other performance

* Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

« Delegation of authonty and segregation of duties

= [dentification and maonagement of risks

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for 8 specific internal audit funetion and appointed Scrutton Bland
a5 the iernnl auditor for the vear to provide a full assurance service in sccordance with internal Auditing
Standards and in compliance with the FRC Ethical Standards for Auditors. The inemal auditor’s rale mcludes
giving advice on internal contrel matters and performing a rangs of checks on the Academy Trusts financial and
other syshems. )

In particular, the checks carmied out in the current penod covered:

Rtisk Management
Payradl

+  Huoman Resources

Procirement
Governance

The Internal Auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the Group Audit Committee a1 least termly oo the
results of internal audit reports. The Internal Auditor provides the Group Audit Commitice with a report on
internal andit activity seross the Trust, and the report includes the Auditor's independent opinion on the adequacy
and effectivencss of the Trust's svstem of risk management, internal control, 2nd governance processes.
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Legra Academy Trust

Governance statement (continued)

Review of effectivencas
As Accounting Officer, Ms B Williams, CEQvPrincipal of Belfiirs has responsibility for reviewing the
effectivencss of the svatem of internal control. During the year in question the review his been informed by,

the work of the internal auditor;
the work of the external auditor;
the financial management and the school resource management self~assessment (SRMEA),;

the work of the exccutive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development anl:[
maimtenance of the infemal contrel frumework.

The sccounting officer has been advized of the implications of the results of the reviewed ofthe aystems of internal
control and ensure conlinuous improvement of the system is in place.

Based on the advice of the zudit and risk committer and the accounting officer, the board of trustees s of the
opindon that the academy trust kas an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and
contral,

Approved by order of the members of the board of Trustees on 2 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:
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Legra Academy Trust
Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance

As accounting officer of Legra Acadermy Trust, 1 confirm thet [ have had dee regard to the framework of
authorities governing regularity, propricty and compliance, including the trust’s finding agreement with DIE,
and ihe requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2034, including responsibilities for estales safety and
management. | have also considered my responsibility to notify the academy frust board of trustees and DIE of
material imegularity, impropriety and non-complisnce with terms and conditions of all funding, inchuding for
estutes safety and manogement.

[ confiom that [, and the board of trustees are able to dettify ay material irmegulir or improper vie of all funds
by the academy trust, or material por-compliance with the framework of authorities,

@NM,

Ms B Williams, Trustee
Accounting nffices

2 December 2025
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Legra Academy Trust
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also the direclors of the charitable company for the purposes of mmpuny law} are
responsible for preparing the Trustess' Report and the financizl statements in sccordance with the Academics
Accounts Direction published by the Department for Bducation, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Compny law requires the Trustees 1o prepare financial statements for cach fimancial year. Undes company law

the Trustees must not approve the financial staisments unless they are sotisfied that they give a true and fair

view of the state of affairs of the charinble company and of its incoming rezources and application of resources,

including its ineome and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these (nancial statements, the Trustees are

recuired o

= zelect sultable accounting policies and epply them consistently;

» observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accgunis Direction 2024
1o 2025;

» make judgments and sccounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material depariures
disclosed and explained in the financia] statemients;

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inuppropriste to presume that the
charitable company will continue in eperalion.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate acepunting records that are suffictent to skow and explain the

charitable company’s transactions and diselose with reasonable accuracy ot any time the Gnancial position of the

cheritakle company and enable them to ensure that the financial stiements comply with the Companies Act

2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and henece for taking

reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularitics,

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and opertion the charitable company applies
financial and other contrils which conform with the requirements bath of propriety and of good financial
mamgement. They ore also responstble for ensuring grants received from Education & Skills Funding Agency
and Drepariment for Education have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the chartable company's website, Legislation in the Unfted Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissemination of financial satements may differ thom legislation tn other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board on 3 December 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

M3z B Williams
Accounting officer

M KHedock

Chair of Truslees
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Legra Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Legra
Academy Trust

Oplnion

We kave audited the financial statements of Legra Academy Trust (the "Academy Trust') for the year ended 31
Aupgumt 2025, which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 August 2025
(inctoding Income and Expenditure Account), Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2025, Statement of Cash Flows foc
the yeor ended 31 Aogust 2025, Woles W the Financial Swtements, incloding @ summary of significant
accounting policies, The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and Unhed Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice),
including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the
Charities SORP 2019 and the Acodemies Accounts Direction 2024 1o 2025 issued by the Department for
Education.

In ewr opinion the financial staterments;

& give o true and fair view of the state of the Acadeiny trust's affairs at 31 Avgust 2625 and of 115 incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

+  hawve been properly prepared in gccordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
+ have been prepared in scoordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2024 1o
20123,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in sccordance with Intérontional Standards on Auditing (UE) {1SAs (UK)) amd
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report, We are independent of the Academy Trust in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are rejevant to our eudit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC™s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfifled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. 'We believe that the audit evidence we have obdained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide
& hasis for our opinkof.

Conclusions relating to golng concern

In suditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trusiees” use of the going concemn basis of
peoounting in the preparation of the financiol statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertaimies relating 1o evengs or
conditicns that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Acadermny's ability to continue as a
going concerm for a period of at least twelve months from when the origingl finoncial statements were authorsed
for issue.

Onir responsibilitics and the responaibilities of the Trostess with respect 1o going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this repart,

Other information

The other information compeises the information ncluded in the trustees’ annual report, other than the financal
stoterments and our auditor’s report therson. The trusiees are responsihle for the other information. Our apinion
on the financiel staterments does not cover the other information and, exeept 1o the cxlent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, v do not express any form of assumance conclusion thereon. Crur respensibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiafly inconsistent with the
financial statermenis or our knowledge obtained in the course of the sudit or otherwise appears 10 be materially
missteted. 1F we identify such material foconsistencies or apporent moterial misstaements, We are réquired to
determine whether this gives rise (0 @ material misstatement in the financial tatements themselves. IF, hased on
the work we have performed, we conclude that theee is 2 materiel misstatement of this other information, we are
reduined to report that [k,
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Legra Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Legra
Academy Trust (continued)

Wi have nothing 10 report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+  the information giver in the trustees’ report (incorporating the Trustees' report) for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

*  the Trustees’ report been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to repart by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its enviremment obtaired in the courge of
the audit, we have not identified material mizstatements in the Trustees' repor,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us 1o
report 1o vou §f, in our opinfon:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, o returns adequate for pur sudit have ot been received
from branches not visited by us; of

= the fitencial statements are ot in agresment with the accounting records and retums; or
s certain disclosures of Trostees remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we hivve not received all the information and explanations we require for our sudit.
Responsibitities of Trostees

As explained more Rilly in the Swstement of Trustess' Responsibilities [set out on page 27], the Trusices are
responstble for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such Internal control 25 the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of fnancial
statements that are free from material misstuiement, whether due to fmud or ermorn.

In preparing the financial stmements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Acudemy’s Trust ability o
continue &5 & going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern and uslng the going
concern basis of necounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy oF o cease aperations, or
hwve no realistic alternative bul to do 5o0.

Auditor Responsibilities for the andit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obttin reasonable assurance ahout whether the financial staternents as a whale e froe
from materinl missisternent, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an suditoc’s report that includes our
opinion. Heasonable assurance s a high level of assurance, but is not a guamatee that an audit conducted in
geoordance with 15As (LK) will alwoys detect o materia] misstaternent when it exists. Missiaternenis can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material i individually or in the aggregate, they could reazomably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken an the basis of these financial statements.

The extent {0 which our proceduses are capable of detecting imegularities, including fraud is detailed below:



Legra Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Legra
Academy Trust (continued)

Cur approgch o jdentifying and sssessing the risks of material misstatement In respect of Imegulinities,
incluwding frand and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as foliows;

* The engagement purtner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence,
capabilities and skills to tdentify or necognise non-compliance with applicable laws und regulations.

*We fncused on specifie laws and regulations which we considesed may have o direct materiol effect on the
finzrcial staterments or the operations for the company, incliding the Companies. Adt 2008, tax legislation and
data protection, anti-bribery, employment, éenvironmentad and health and safety legislation,

*We ussessed the edent of compliance with the laws and regulstions identified sbove throwgh making enguiries
of management.

*ldentified laws and regulations were commiuricated with the audit team regulurly and the team remalned alert
of Instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the company’s frescisl statements to material misstaterent, including
ebtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur by;

sMaking enquires of management a3 to where they considered there was suscepiibility to fraud, their
knowledpe of actuad, suspected and alleged fraud.

«Considering the internal controls in ploce to mitigate the risks of faud and pon-compliance with lows and
regrulations

To address the risk of froud through manogement bias and averride of contrals, we;

*Performed analytical procedures 1o identify any unusual or unexpested relationships
#Tested journal entrics to identify unusual transactions

In response W0 the risk of inegularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we desipned procedures
which included, but were not limited toc

«Agresing financial statement disciosures to underlying supporting documentation
*Heading the minutes of mectings of those charged with govermnance
*Enquiring of management as to actual and potential |idgation and claims

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there i3 a risk that we will not detect all frregularitics, including
thoge leading 10 & material misstatement in the financial statements or nen-compliance with regulation. This risk
increnses e more that complinnce with a law or regulation 8 removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the finencial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of Instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also preater regarding Irregularities occurring duc to fraud rather than emror, @ faud involves
intentional concealment, forgery. collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further deseription of our responsibiliies is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www. fre.orguk/suditerseesponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditos’s repor.,
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Legra Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of Legra
Academy Trust (continued)

Use ol onr report

This report 1s made solely o the charitable company's members, 2z a body, in aceordamce with Chapter 3 of Pant
16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company's members those matters we ane required 1o state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permisted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
this charitahle company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

..................................

Sandra Morrell (Senior Stlwtory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Edmund Carr LLP, Statutory Awditor

146 New London Bond
Chelmaford

Essex
CME2 AW

pae: 101 12{2028
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Legra Academy Trust

Independent Reporiing Accountant's Repori on Regularity to Legra Academy Trust
and the Department for Education

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 17 Seplember 2020 and further (o the requirements
of the Depariment for Education (DIE) as included in the extnt Framework and Cuide for External Auditors
and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trosw, we have carmied out an engagement to obtain Emited assurance
about whether anything has come to our attention that would suggest, in all material respects, the expendinre
disbursed and income received by Legm Academy Trust during the period | Seprember 3024 to 31 August 2025
have nod been applied to the purposes intended by Parlizment snd that the financial transactions do not conform
to the authorities which govern them,

This report is made solely 1o Legra Academy Trust and the Secoetary of State for Education in acoondance with
the terms of our engagement lefter, Orur work has been underaken so that we may stale o Legra Acaderny Trust
and the Secretary of State for Bducation those matiers we are required w state in a report and for no other
purpose, To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
Legra Academy Trust and the Sccrétary of State for Education, for our work, for this report, or for the
conchaiog we have formed

Respective respousibilities of the Governing Body's accounting officer and the reporting acconntant

The Accounling Olficer is responsible, under the requirerments of the board of Trustees funding agresment with
the Secretery of State for Edvcation dated | June 2012 and the Academies Trust Handbook for ensuring that
expenditure disbursed s income recaived is applied for the purposes inlended by Parlinment and the finaneial
transactions conlomn Lo the authorities which govern them.

Our responstbilities for thiz engagement ure established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidapce and are to obtain limited 2ssurance and report in sccordance with our cngapement letier and the
requirernents of the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Feporting Accountants of Academy
Trusts . We report to you whether anything has come to cur attention [n currying out our work which suggests
that in all material respects, expenditure dishursed and income reccived during the year from | September 2024
10 31 Aupust 2025 have not heen applied for the purposes intended by Parliament of that the financin!
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them,

Approach
We condiecied our engegement o sccordonce with the Framework end Guide for External Auditors and

Reponing Accountant of Acadenty Trusts issued by DIE, which requires o imited assumance engagement as sel
oul in our cngagement leter.

The objective of o limited assurance engagement 15 1o perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sulficient appropriate evidence to express a negalive conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more [imited in scope than @ reasonable assurance engogement and
consequently does not enable us to obiain assurance that we would become awsare of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express 1 positive opinton.

Chir engagement includes cxamimation, on & test basis, of evidence relevant to the regutarity and propriety of ihe
academy trust's income and expenditure.

Thie waork underizaken to draw to our conclosion includes:

*  Reviewing the minutes of the mectings of the Trustees and other evidence made avallable 1o uws which is
relevant tooour consideration of regulority

= testing a swmple of payments and receipts B documentation

* evaluating the ivternal control procedures and reporting lines, testing as appropeiate and making sppropriste
enguiries of the Accounting Officer

Page 32




Legra Academy Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Report on Regularity to Legra Academy Trust
and the Department for Education (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come 1o our sttention which suggests that in a1l miterlal respects the
cxpenditurs disbursed and Income recelved during the year from 1 Seplember 2024 to 31 August 2025 has not’
been applied for the purposes intended by Parlinment or that the fnancial transactions do not conform o the
authorities which govern them.

&@mund corr «P

Sandra Morrell
For and on behal{ of Edmund Carr LLP, Charlered Accountanis

146 Mew London Road
Chelmsford

Eszex
Ch2 DAW
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Legra Academy Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 Aogust 2025

(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Hestricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Assel 1024725
Fumnds Funds Funds “Futal
MNote £ £ £ £
Income and endowmenis from:
Dunations and capital grants 2 318,134 - 145,692 464,826
Oiher truding ectivitics 4 290,179 - % 299179
Imvestments 31,948 - - £1.94%
Charitable activities:
Funding for the Acaderny
Irust's educational operations 3 - 14,893, 30K - 14,893,308
Total 699,261 14,8593 308 146,692 15,73%.261
Expenditure an:
Charitable activiries:
Academy trust educational
operations & A5, 368 13,5994 853 1,097,514 13,650,735
Met incomef expemditmre) 93,893 206,453 (950, 822) 39,526
Transfers between funds 60,205 (246,157} 155,862 -
Oiher recoguised gains and
losses
Actuarial gaing on defined
benefil pension schemes 20 - (216,000 - (216,000
Net movement in
Funds/{deficit) 154,188 434 258 (T64,960) (ET6,ATd)
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forwacd at
1 September 2024 317,703 2,840,441 37975384 41,133,528
Total funds carried forvard
31 August 2025 470,891 1274,730 37,210,424 40,957,054
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Statement of Financial Activitics for the Year Ended 31 Auguost 2024

Legra Academy Trust

(including Tncome and Expenditure Account)

Note

Income and endowments from:
Donatfons and capital grants
Other trading nctivities
Investrents

Charitable aetivities:

Funding for the Academy

trust's edweational operations
Total

Expenditure cn:

Charlfable activities:
Academy trust educational

operations
Met incomeexpenditge)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains and
losses

Actugrial gains on defined
henefit pension schemes

Wei movement in
Tissds deficit)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward at
I September 2023

Total funds carried forward at
3 August 2024

20

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Assel 202324
Funds Funds Funds Total
£ E £ £
272,001 . 153,159 415,250
265,829 - - 265,829
39,264 - - 5264
- 14,288,523 - 14,288,523
377,184 14,288,523 153,159 15018866
551,190 12,791 864 1,101 311 14,444 374
25,985 1496659 (948,152} STH492
- {34,926} 34926 -
- { 188,000) - { F&6,000)
25,385 1,275,733 (913,226) 368,492
291,718 1,564,708 3R.8BR.G10 40,745.036
317,703 1,840,441 37075384 41,133,528
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Legra Academy Trust

(Registration number: 08066610)

Balance Sheet as at 31 Augost 2025

Fixed asseis
Tangible pssets

Currenf assels
Debtors
Cash al bank and in hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Met current assels

Total assets bess curment Liabilitles

et assets excluding pension asser

Total et assets

Funds of the Academy:

Restricted funds
Restricted general fund
Resicdcted fixed msset fund

Unreéstricied fandy
Unrestricted general fund

Tatul fands

Nate

14
14

14

025 2024

£ £
37,154,072 37,905,579
352,089 426,554
4,223,459 3,463,884
4,776,478 3,890,882
{973 496) (663,333
5,802,983 3,227,549
40,957,054 41,133,528
40,957,054 41,133,528
40,957,054 41,133,528
3,274,739 2 840,441
37,210,424 37975384
4,485,163 40,815,823
471,551 31708
40,957,054 41,133,528

The financial statements on pages 34 1o 60 were appeoved by the Trustees, and authorized for issue on 2

December 2023 and signed on their behalf by

lethny

Mz B Williams
Trusiese

Mirs K Herlock
Trustee
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Legra Academy Trust

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2025

Cash Mows from operating activitics
Met cash provided by operating activitics

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in cash ond cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash cquivalents at 1 Seplémber

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August

Fage 37

Note

2025 2024
£ £
875,572 669,460

{L16,967) 32,120
V59,605 11,589

3,463 8R4 2,762,255

4,223,489 3,463,884




Legra Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025

1  Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies sdopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noded), judgements and key sources of estimation uncerainty s sel aut befow,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the scademy trust, which is & public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ircland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Stalement of
Recommended Practice applicable to chantics preparing their accounts in accordence with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Treland (FRS 102} (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2023 issued by DME, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companics Act
200,

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going coscern |5 sppropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to evenis or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company 1o
continue as & going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of a1 least one vear from
the date of suthorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has
mdequate resources o conlinue in operational existence for the foresecable fture and there eré no mabérial
uncertuinties about the academy trust's ability 1o continee as o going concesn, thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when (he academy trust has entitiernent 1o the funds, the receipt is
probable and the ameunt can he measured relisbly.

iranis

Granis are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of ircome
received for specific purposes but nod expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance
shect. Where income is reccived in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions, there is ot
unconditional entitlement to the income and its recogmition is deferred and incheded in creditors as deferred
income entil the performance-related conditions sre met. Where entitlenent occurs before income is received,
the income is accowed.

Creneral Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and uny abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a Hability,

Capital grants are recognised in Rull when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent amounts of
capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital gronts are spent on
capital projects in line with the terms and conditions of the grant. Capital grants are recognised when there is
entitlement ond are not deferred over the life of the psset on which they are expended.

Donafions

Donations are recognised on g recefvable basis (whore there are no performance-related conditions) where the
receipt is protable and the amount can be reliably measused.
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Legra Academy Trast

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

1 Accounting pelicies (continned)

Mher incowme

Onher income, including the hire of locilities, is recognised in the peried it is reccivable and to the cxient the
ncademy trust has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to @ third
party, it is probuble thut a transfer of econonite betiefits will be required Jn setdement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured relizbly. Expenditore is classified by activity, The costs of each aclivity are made up
of the total of direct costs and shored costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct
costs attributable to a single netivity are allocated directly 1o that activity. Shared costs which contribute 1o more
than one nctivity and support costs which are not attributable to 2 single activity are spporioned between those
activitics on & basiz consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocaled on the basis of time
spent, and depreciation charges aliocated o the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expendéd are inclusive of imecoverable VAT.

Expenditiure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incumed by the academy trust o raise funds for ity charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-chariiable trading.

Charifeble aotivities

These are costs incurred on the scademy tust’s educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating 1o the governance of the ecademy trust apportioned 1o charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets
Assels costing £5,000 or moce ere capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are caricd at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been scquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the privaic sector, they ure included in the Balance Sheel at cost and depreciated over their expected useful
coonamic ife, Where there are specific conditions attached to the lunding requiring the continued use of the
gsset, the pefated prants are credited to o restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and
carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Deprecistion on the relevant assets i3 charged directly to the restricted
fixed mgset fund in the Stalement of Financial Activities. Where tmngible fixed assets have been acquired with
unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on o]l tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction, at
rales calculnted to write off the cost of esch assel over ils expeeled useful life, per the table below.

Where an assed comprises of two or more components which have substantially different usefil lives, each
component i depreciated seporetely over its usefil economic life.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
wre brought into use ond reclassified to freshold or leasehold land and baildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is camied out if events or changes in clrocumsiances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed assel may not be recoverable. Shortfalls betwoen. the carrying value of fived assets
and their recoverable smounts are recognised as impalrments, Impaimment fosses are recognised in the Stoiemend
of Financial Activities.
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Legra Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (contimued)

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Freehold property 2% straight line

Long-term leaschold property 2% straight line

Fumniture and equipment 25% redhuwcing balance
Computer equipment 33.33% straight fine

Motor vehicles 20% straight line

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognized when there is an obligation at the balance sheel date a2 a result of a past event, it is
probable that 2 transfer of economic benetit will be required in setflement, and the amount of the settlement can
bi cstimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the pmount that the academy trust enticipates it will pay to
settle the debt or the amount it has received os advanced payments for the goeds or services it must provide,

Pravistens

Provisions are recognised when the academy frizst has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will resull in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimuted
reliabiy.

Provisions are measured af the best estimate of the amounts required 1o settle the obligation. Where the effect of
the timbe value of money I8 materal, the provision i based on the present value of those amounts, discounted al
the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific 1o the lability, The unwinding of the discount is
recognised within interest payable and similar charges,

Leased assets
[Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease berm.

Flnaneial Instroments
The scadenyy trust onfy holds basic financial instrements as defined in FRS 102, The financial ussets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their messurement basis are s follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic fingncial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised ocost a5 detailed in note 12, Prepayments are not financial instraments. Amounts due to the charity's
wholly ovwned subsidiary are held at fice value less any Impainment

Cash at bank - is clussified as 4 basic fnancial instroment and s measuncd at face valoe,

Financial liabilities = trade creditoss, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, amd wre measured ot
amortised cast as detatled in notes 13, Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments
disclosure definition. Deferred meome i3 nol déemed to be a financial Hability, as the cash seitiement has
already taken place and these is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another {nancial instrument.
Amounts due to chariny's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face velue bess any impairment.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph | Schedule & of the Finance Act 20010 and
therefare it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK comparation tas purposes.

Accordingly, the neademy trust is poteatially exempt from taxation fn respect of income of capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapier 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2000 or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Chargeablé Gains Act 1992, to the cxtent thal suech income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.
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Legra Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

1  Accounting policies (continued)

Pension benefiis
Retiremment benefits to employees of the acadery trest are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ('TPS")
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (*LGPS"), These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS.is an unfunded scheme and contributions ane calculated 1o spread the cost of pensions over employees’
working lives with the ecademy trust in such a way tha the pension cost is a substantially level percemage of
current and future pensionable payroll, The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary hased on
qpeadrennial valiations using & prospective unit eredit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with
no underlying assets to assign between emplovers, Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribation
scheme for accounting purpuses and the contributions recognized in Lhe period o which they relate.

The LGPS s a funded multi-emplover scheme and the assets are held sepamtely from those of the scademy trest
in separate trustee ndministersd funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and labilities zre
measured on an achisrial bass using the projected unit eredit method and discounted at o rate cquivalent o the
current mte of retum on & high-quality corporate bond of eguivalent term and currency to the ilabdlities. The
actuarial valuations wre obtained at least triconially ‘and are wpdated at each balance sheet date. The mmodnts
charged to net ncome(expenditure) are the cument service costs and the costs of scheme ntroductions, benafit
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are incleded as part of staff costs as mcurmed. Met interest on the net
defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Stalement of Financial Activities and comprises the
imferest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the fair valee of the scheme assets w1 the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the
benefit obligations, The difference belween the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual retum on the
scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses,

Aciuarial gains and losses are recognised immedintely @ other recognised gains and losses,
Fund accounting

Unrestricted income finds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the academy trust al the discrelion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds wre resources, which afe to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders, where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise wll other restricted funds recelved with restrictions imposed by the
funder’donor and inchade grants from the Department for Education Group.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgensent

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical expericnce and other factors,
including expectations of fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Page 41



Legra Academy Trust

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Critieal accounting estimates and axsimpiions

The academy triest makes estimates ind asimplions conceming the Miture, The resulling accounting estimates
and azsumplions will, by definition, seldom egual the refated actual resulis. The estimates and assumptions that
have u significant risk of cousing o materin] adjustment bo the comyving amounts of assets and Habiiities within
the next finunctal year are discussed below,

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit lability depends on 8 number of
lactors that sre determined on an achewrial basis using o variely of assumplions. The assumptions bsed in
determining the nel cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumplions,
which are disclosed in sote 21, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Purthermore 2 soll
forward approach which projects resulis from the latest full sctuarial valuation performed at 3§ March 2022 has
Been used by the actuary in vahuing the pensions linbility ar 31 August 2025, Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the cemying
amount of the pension lability.

Crifical arees of fadgement

An exarmple that may apply o scademy trusts (where relevant) is the significont judgements needed bn assessing
whether any LGPS surplus should be recognised 25 a pension assct or whether the surplus should be restricted to
some level or in total. FRS 102 section 2821 states & plan surplus can be recognised only 1o the extent an entity
iz able to recover the surplus, cither through reduced contributions in the future, or through refunds from the
scheme. Consider including here the impact of this asscssment, on the extent w0 which a scheme surplus has
been recognised a5 a penslon asset al the balance sheet date,

Agency accounting

The academy trust acts as an sgent in distributing [6-19 bursary funds from ESFA / DIE. Payments received
from ESFA / DIE and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded from the statemsent of finacial
activities as the tnest does not have contral over the charitable application of the funds. The trust can use up to
5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of finarcial
activities. The funds recelved and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 22,

I Donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestricted Fined Asset 202425 202324
Funds Funads Tustal Total
£ £ £ £
Educational irips and visiis 318,134 = 318,134 272,08
Capital grants - 146,693 145,602 153,159
18, 134 |46 602 464,826 423,250
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3 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Educational aperations

DIE/TME revenue grants
Gieneral Annual Grant (GAG)
Dther DIEESFA grants
Pupil Premium

LITFSh

16-19 core education funding

Other government
grants
SEM

Mon-government

pgraots and ofher income
Local authority

Hisk Protection Amangement

Totul grants
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Restricted
General 22425 2324
Funds Total Toial
£ £ £
1273377 112713377 (0,657,016
1,143,824 I, 143,824 914,430
£16,232 516,232 490 407
60,293 60,295 Gi,237
911,906 011506 211,528
Pi90% 634 13,9035, 634 13048618
234,172 234,172 232 780
TI5823 715523 47,750
37,579 3T 30317
753,502 753,502 9R7.116
14,893,308 14,853,308 14,288 523




Legra Academy Trust

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

4  Other trading activities

Unrestricted 2024725 2023724
Funds Tutal Tutal
£ £ £
Hire of facilities 50,868 50,868 38,100
Catering income 30,967 50,967 45,803
School zates #4160 4,160 18,775
Difgem receipts 22508 22,508 20,597
Fundraising aciivities 170,676 170,676 138,554
299,179 299179 265 529
5 Expenditure
Non Pay Expenditure
2024425 202324
Stall costs Premises Orther costs Total Total
£ £ £ E £
Academy trust’s
educational
operations
Direct costs 10,132 482 - 651,854 10,784,336 9.020.142
Allocated support
cosls 1,837,140 2,042,670 1,035,580 4,915,399 4,515,232
L1.560.612 2,442,679 I,587.434 15,699,735 14,444,374
Net incomefexpenditure) for the year inchades:
224425 2324
£ £
Operating lease rentals #3320 76,144
Deqirecizstion 1097514 1101311
Fees payable to suditor - audil 19,000 LB, 750
- other audit services 1425 13463

Includad within cxpenditure are the following transactions:
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& Charitalile activithes

2prans 023724
£ £
Direct eosts - educational operations 10,784 336 Qo9 142
Support costs - educationsl operations 4,015,399 4,415,232
15,600,735 14,444,374
Educational 2024725 2023724
operations Total Taotal
£ £ £
Analysis of support costs
Support s1ail costs [, 837,140 1,837,140 1,601,099
Depreciution 1097514 1,097,514 1,101,311
Technology costs 239,056 239,056 155,360
Premises costs 245,165 945,165 835329
Legal andd professional fees 165 604 165,60 154,711
Other support costs GI0AT0 S10.670 645,507
Covernance cosls 20,250 20,250 20,915
Totwml support costs 4,915,399 4,915,399 4,515,232
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7 Staffl
Staff costs and employee benelits
02425 I0TN24
i £
Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and salarfes HATIATT 8,196,142
Social security costs 1,031,099 809,658
Oiperating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 2,056,722 1,776,789
11,761,292 10,782,589
Supply staff cosis 171,389 130,309
Staff restructering cosis 36,941 -
11,969,622 10,912,858
202428
£
Stalf restructuring cosis comprise:
Severance payments — 11
Severance Payments
The academy trust paid 2 severance payments in the vear disclosed in the following bands:
2024425
£
0= £25,000 1
£25,001 - £50,000 1
2

Special stafl severance payments
Included in staff restructuring costs are non-stamutory/mon-contractual severance payments totalling £32,000
{2024: £Xil). Individually, the payments were £32 000,

Page 46



Legra Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

T Siaff {continued)

Stallf numbers

The average munber of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

MZ4TS 202324

Ma Mo

Teachers 133 134
Administration and support 129 126
danagement 17 16
279 276

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employes benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer nitonal
Insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

I024/25 202324

Mo Ma

£60,001 - £70,000 11 10

£70,001 = £80,000 4 3

£90,001 = £100,004 3 3

£160,001 - £170,000 1 -

£170,001 - £180,000 - |
Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the acodemy trust comprise the rustees and the senior management team as
listed om pege 1. The fotal amount of key manogement personnel berefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insumnce contributions) reeelved by key management personnel for thelr
services to the academy trust was £382,107 (2024; £372,334),
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8 Central services

The sedemy trust has provided for the following contral services to its scademies during the year:
*  Risk Protoction Atrangements

= Professional services, ineluding audit

* Educationa) support services

The academy trust charges for these services as a percentage of the School Budget Share and Education Services
Crant, based on the affordability of cach school,

The actual amounts charged during the year were ag foliows:

2024125 2023724

£ £

Betfairs Academy 347.543 333,917
Dalinghurst Acudemy $0.442 42,177
397,985 376,004

% Related party transactions - trostecs’ remumeration and expenses
One or more trostees has been paid remuncration or has recdlved other benefits from employment with the
academy trust. The principal and other siaff trustees only seceive remuneralion in respect of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members wnder their coniracis of employment, and not in
respect of their role os trustees. The valee of trustees” remuneration and other benefits was as folbows:
Ms B Williams (CEO):

Remuneration: £165,000 - £170,000 (2024 - £170,000 - £175,000)

Emplover's pension confributions: £435 000 - £50,000 (2024 - £40,000 - £45 600)
Other related panty transactions involving the trustees are set out innote 21,

10 Trustees' and officers’ insurance

The acaderyy has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection armangement (RPAY, an altemative o
insurance where LK government funds cover lnases that arise, This scheme protects Trustess and officers from
cloims arising from negligent. acts, ervors or omissions' eccurring whilst on academy business, and provides
cover up to £10,600.000. It is not possible to quantify the Trestees and officers indemnity elerment fram the
overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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11 Tangible fixed assets

Freehald Leasehald Furnitare

land and land and  Assets under ond Computer Movar 102425

bubldings buildings construction equipment equipment vehicles Tatal

£ £ £ i £ i £

Cuist
At 1 Seplember 2024 17,787,207 9252072 61,718 1ABG, 147 1,743,035 7.0 S033T,079
Additians - 02424 155,050 40,607 57,526 - 345,607
Transfers - - (38,335 38335 & - -
AL 31 Aupust 2025 37,787,207 2,344,454 178,433 1,563,089 1 H00,561 7000 50,682, 786
Depreciation
ALl September 2024 7,913,663 1,648,550 - 1,321,946 1,539,601 7,000 12,431,200
Charge for the year 156,579 164,741 - 50,813 125381 - 1.057.514
At 31 Angust 2025 #.670,242 1,813,731 - 1,372,759 1,664,052 7 0K 13,528,714
Net hook value
AL 3T August 2025 20,116,965 7,530,765 | 78,431 1693 .33 [35,57% - 37,154,072
AL August 2024 29,873,544 7.503,082 61,718 164,201 203,434 - 37,505,979

Preehold land valued sl £1m is pol being depreciated
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12 Debtors

Trade debtors

Prepaymenis

Accrued grant and other income
Other debtors

13 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditaors

Other taxation and social security
Other ereditors

Accrusls

Deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred income af | September 2024
Resources deferred in the period
Amounts releaged from previous perinds

Deferred income at 31 Avpust 2023

2025 2024

) £
12,464 6312
282,241 256,544
192,395 137,320
55.889 26,422
552,989 426,998
552 089 426,995
025 2024

£ £
154,053 88,751
472,760 181,300
- 2,635
123,454 215,146
183,229 175,301
H73.496 663,333
2028 2024

£ £
175301 182,702
183,230 175,301
(175,301} (182,702
183,225 175,301

Deferred income of £35,582 (2024: £38,697) related to UIFSM received from the Depactment for Educution, in

refation to the period 1 September 2025 10 31 March 2026,

Deferred income of £91,797 (2024: £90,3081) relsted to Rates rebate received from the Department for

Educstion, tn refution to the period 1 September 2025 to 31 August 2026,

Deferred Income of £55,850 (20024: £46,296) related 1o deposits held in respect of schoal trips to be taken in the

2025/26 wcademic year.
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14 Funds

Restricted general fands
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Onlver DME/ESFA Grants

Local Authority Grants

Other Government Granty
MAT Central Fumd

16-12 Core Education Funding.
UIFSM

Pupil Premium

Pension Reserve

Hestricted fived assef funds
[nherited Assets

Tanglble Fixed Assets
Intengible Fixed Assels
ESFA Capital Grants

Local Authority Capital

Total restricted finds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general funds

Total funds

Balance at
1 Gains,  Balance at
September Incoming Resources  Tosces and 31 August
2024 FES0EFCEs expenided transfers 2025
£ i 4 £ £
2666547 11273377 (10309,870) (583.847) 3,046,207
- LIELADZ  (L.11,403) - -
- 715923 (715.923) = o
- 234,172 (234,172) - -
173,894 - (343,347} 197,985 228,532
- 911,906 (911 506) - -
- 60,295 - {60,2935) -
= 516,232 (316,252) - -
- - 216,000 {216,000 -
2,840,441 14893308  (13,906,853) (4621577 3274739
30,074,088 - (736,579} - 317,509
7,831,858 - (335,234} 331,027 TA23.681
- - {1,701} 14,580 12,879
45,667 42 652 - (87,136) 1,233
23,741 104,000 - (72,609) 5,132
37.975.184 146,692 [1,007.514) 155,862 37210424
40,815,825 15,040,000 (15,094 367) (2T6.295) 40485163
317,703 699,261 {605,368) 60,295 471,891
41,133,528, 15739261 {15609,735) (2160000 40,957,054
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14 Funds (continued)

Restricted general funds
Creneral Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DHE/ESFA Grapts

Local Amthority Grants

Other Government Granis
MAT Central Fund

16-19 Core Education Funding
UIFSM

Pupil Premiurm

Pension Rescrve

Restricted fived asset funds
Inherited Assets

Tangible Fixed Assets

ESFA Capital Grants

Local Authority Capiral

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted fonds
Unrestricted generad funds

Total funds

Balance at Balance at

1 Grains, 31 Angust

September Incoming Resources losses amil 2524
m3 rEsOurees Expended transfers

£ £ £ £ £

LAIGT3H 10657016 (8,996,187 {410,0000 2666547

- 953,747 {953,747 . -

- 947,799 {947,7949) - =

- 252,789 {252,78%) - -

147,970 - (350,179} 376,004 173,894

- 911,528 {911,528) - -

- 66,237 (646,237) = &

. 450,407 (499, 407) - s

- - 1 86,000 (186,000} -

1 564,708 14286523 (12,791.864) (220.526) 2BA0.441

30,884 931 - (T56,579) (54,2641 30,074,088

7,962,053 - (344,731) 214,567 7831588

41,626 42313 - (38.272) 45,667

* 1I0.846 = {B7,105) 23,741

3%, 888,610 153,159 (L,101,310) 3526 37,973,384

40453318 144401682 (13,893,175 (186.000) 40,815,525

261,718 3T7.184 (351,195} - 37,703

40,745,036  I5018.866 (14444374} (1860007 41,133,528

The academy trust 15 not subject bo GAG carried forwand limats,
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14 Funds {centinued)

Thie specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted general fonds
These funds relate 1o the Academy's development und operational sctivities.

Hestricted pension funds
These fumds represent the LGPS obligation 1o the employees of the Acadenty Trust

Restricted fived asset fond

These funds relute w0 long term assets held by the Academy Trust and grants o purchese or muintain these
assels.

Unresiricted funds

These funds relate to amounds generated or scquired with no restrlcted covenanis stieched to them other than for
use within the charitable objectives of the Academy.

Total funds analysls by scademy

Fund balances at 31 August 2025 were allocated us follows:

1025 2024

£ £

Drarlinghurst Academy £30.332 TR 403
Belfairs Academy 2,677,155 2,195 236
Cenirnl services 239,143 184,505
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 3,746,630 3,158,144
Resiricied fived asset fund 37,210,424 37975384
Total 40,957,084 41,033,528
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4 Funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was a3 follows:
Tenching
and
educational Other Other costs
suppori support  Educational fexclnding Tatal
stafl costs stall costs supplies  depreciation) 2028
£ i £ £ £
Beifairs Academy 7,711,303 1,183,715 513,219 1,361,807 10,770,644
Darlinghurst Academy 2,289,405 548,005 102,934 547 886 3 A4ER. 230
Central services 86,141 68,230 9,253 179,723 343,347
Academy Trust 10,087,34% 1,759,950 615,406 2089516 14,602,221
Comparative information im respeot of the preceding period is as follows:
Teaching
and
educational Mher ) Dther costs
suppor support  Edacational (excluding Tutal
stalf casts stall costs supplies  depreciation) 2024
£ £ £ £ £
Belfairs Academy 6,877,083 1,225,166 S69,615 1,229,619 9,905 303
Darlinghurst Aeademy 2230855 437,581 113,095 482,964 3,273,500
Central services Q7018 78,351 1976 172,825 350,170
Academy Trust 9.214.B56 1,744,088 84,650 1885410 13,529,063
15 Analysis of net assets between funds
Fund balances st 31 August 2025 are represented by
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fized Asset
Funds Funis Funds Total Funds
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed xssets - - 37,154,072 37,154,072
Current assels 471,891 4,248 235 56,352 4,776,478
Curremt liabilittes - (973,450 = [(973,456)
Total net assets 471,891 3,274,739 37,210,424 40,957,054
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15 Analysis of nel assets hetween funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preseding pesiod is as follows:

Restricted Restricied
Uarestricted General Fined Assct
Funds Fundds Funds Total Funds
- 3 £ £ i
Tangible fixed axsets - - 37,905,979 37,905,979
Current sssets 317,703 3,503,774 60,405 3,850,882
Current liabilities - (663 333) - (663,333}
Total net assels 317.703 2540441 17975384 41,133,528
16 Reconcilintion of net income to net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities
2024725 02324
£ £
et income 19526 ST 492
Depreciation 1,097,514 1,101,311
Capital grants from DIE and other capital ncome (146,692) (153,155
frterest receivable (51.94%) {30,264)
Defined benefit pension scheme obligation (197,000) (143,000)
Defined benefic pension scheme finunee cost { 19,0000 (43,0000
Increase in debiors (F25,991) (132,983)
Increase/{decrease) in creditors 310,163 (494,928)
Nt cash provided by Operting Activitics 876,572 669,459
17 Cash Mows from investing activities
1024125 102324
£ £

Dividends, interest and rents from invesiments BL548 39,264
Purchase of tangible Gxed assels {345,607) {160,303}
Capital funding received from sponsors and others 146,692 153,159
Met cash {used in)/provided by investing activithes {116,967) 32,120
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L8 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2025 2024

£ 2

Cash in hind and a2 bank 4,223,489 3,463,884
Tota! cash and cash equivalents 4,223 489 3,463,884

19 Member lability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wourd up while hefshe 15 a member, or within ane yeirr alter hefshe ceases 10 be & member, such amount
ms may be required, not exceeding £10 for the deins and [iabilities contracted before hefshe ceases to be o
member,

20 Pension and similar obligaiions

The acadersy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers” Pension Scheme
Eppland and Wales (TP#S) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGFS)
for non-lesching staff, which s managed by Essex County Council . Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The latest actuarial valoation of the TPS related 1o the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGFS to the
period ended 31 March 2022,

Contributions amounting to £250,307 woere payable to the schomes a1 31 August 2025 (2024: £Nil) and are
included within ereditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) s a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, govemed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulntions 2014, Membership is auiomatic for teschers in academy trusts: All
teachers have e option 1o opl-oul of the TPS following carolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both member and employer makes contributions, as o percentage of
safary = these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other peasion benefits are paid by
pubdic funds provided by Parlisment,

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuney, using normal actuarial principles, conducts & farmal aciuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review 5 to ensure scheme costs ane récognised and managed
appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions,
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10 Pension and similar obligations {continoed)

Actuarial scheme valustions are dependent on assumptions sbowt the value of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest sctuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as.at 31 March 2020, The
yaluation reporl was published by the Department for Edueation on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, sc
by HMT, applying 2 notlonal Investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPL. The key elements of the
valuation oulcome are:

= employer contribution rales et at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including o 0.08% admimstration levy) This is
am increase of 5% in emplover contribations and the cost control result is such that no change in member
benefits is needed,

= total scheme labilitics (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the cffective date of £262,000 million, and rotionzl assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222 200 million giving o notional past service deficit
of £39 300 million

Thie reault of this valuation wos implemented on b Aprl 2024, The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2027,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,637,625 (2024: £1,374,595).

A copy of the valustion report and supporting documentation 5 oo the Teachers' Pensions website
(hzpsstiveww, ieachesspensions oo ukfnews employers 201 904 teachers-pensions-valuntion-report.aspe).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer peasion seheme. The academy
trust iz unable to identify itz share of the underlyving assets and [iabilities of the plan, Accordingly, the scademy
trust has taken ndvantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has sccounted for its contritnitions ta the scheme as
if it were o defined contribution scheme, The acadermy st has set out above, the information available on the
scheme.

Local government peasion scheme

The LGES is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The
total contribution mads for the yoor ended 31 August 2025 was £726,000 (2024 - £639,000), of which
empleyer's contributions totalled £592,000 (2024 - £518,000) and employees' contributions totalied £134,000
(2024 = £121,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 23% per cent for employers and 5.5% Lo
12.5% per cent (o employees.

Parliament hos agreed, at the request of the Sccretary of State for Education, to a gussantés it in the event of
an neademy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme labilities would be met by the
Drepartment for Education. The guarantes came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department
for BEducation reaffirmed its commitment to the guaranies, with & partiamentasy minute published on GOVIUK,

Principal actuarial assomptions
2025 2024
% e
Fate of increase in zalarics 3.60 3.80
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentfin{lation 2.60 280
Discount rate for scheme linbilities 6.10 510
Inflation assumptions (CPT) 2.60 2.80
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20 Pension and similar obligations {continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficiem allowance for future improvements in the morality rates,
The assumed life expectations on refirement age 65 are;

028 kg
Retiring todny
Males reliring today 21.80 20.70
Females retiring today 24,10 2330
Retiring in 20 years
Males retiring in 20 years 2140 22.00
Females refiring in 20 years 25.80 24.70
Sensitivity analysis

025 2024

£000 £000
Discoumnt rate +1.1% TATO 8175
Discount mte=0.1% 7,730 B 496
Mortality assumption — | year increase 7,791 BOET
Mortality assumption — [ year decrease 7410 8,587
CPLmte -+ 1 % 7.730 BG4
CPI rate 0.1% 7,465 B 176
The academy wrust’s share of the asses in the scheme were:

2015 2024

£000 £000
Equities 5,812 2597
Giles 142 153
Property Bl 628
Cash and other liguid assets 162 152
Other 671 2406
Total market value of assets 7,598 8,333

The actual returm on scheme assetls was 891,000 (2024 - £897,000).

Page 58



Legra Academy Trost

Notes to the Financial Statements Tor the Year Ended 31 August 2025 (continued)

20 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Amopunts recognized in the statement of Anancial activities

20L4T5 201324
£000 £004
Current service cost {414) (345)
[nberest tncome A67 413
Intesest cost {424) (395)
Admin expenses {5) {33
Total amount recognized in the SOFA {376} {332)
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:
2024725 102324
£000 £000
At start of pertod §333 T, 504
Current service cost 414 345
Interest cost 424 395
Employee contributions 134 121
Actuarial {gain)loss (1520) 191
Benefits paid { LEAY (219
AL 3T August 7.598 8,133
Changes in the fair value of academy’s shore of scheme assets;
2024/25 202324
£000 £00H0
At start of period 8333 7,500
[nierest income 467 413
Actiarial gainioss) 5 L
Ermployer contributions 5492 518
Employes contributions 134 121
Benefits paid (1.933) {224}
Al 31 August 7.508 8,333
Local government pension schemes

The LGPS valuation shows & pension assed as af 31 August 2025, FRS 102 section 28.22 states & plan surlpus
can be recognised only to the extent an entity is able to recover the surplus, either through reduced contributions

in the future, or through refunds from the scheme. Based on the guidance, the pension asset has not been

recognized and instead the actuarial gain has boen restticted to recognise the lisbility as nil.

21 HRelated party transactions

Owing to the niture of the scademy trust and the composition of the board of Trustees being dravn from local
public and privete secior organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the tmestees

have an interest,

There werd no relnted party transactions in the year, other than certain trustees’ remuneration and expenses

plready disciosed in ngte 9.
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11 Apency arrangements

The academy triest distributes 16-19 bursary funds o stodents as an agend for DIE, in the wccounting period
ending 31 August 2025 the academy trust received £3,171 and disbursed £4,452 from the fund. An amount of
£3.760 iz included in other creditors relating to undistributed fumds that is repayable to INE,

Comparatives for the accounting period ending 31 August 2024 are £5,457 received, £8,906 disbursed and
£10,041 included in other croditors.
13 Long-term commitments, Incleding operating leases

Operating leages
AL 31 August 2025 the total of the scademy tmust's fulure minimum lease payments under ron-cancellsbie
opemting leases was:

2025 2024

£ £

Amounts due within one year 67 BO8 75,147
Amounts due between ane and five years 100,767 78,658
168,665 153 805
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